CHAS-63 1732, 1792 and later
OLD DURHAM CHURCH (Christ Church, Episcopal)

Ironsides

Private

A plain but attractive brick structure, 01d Durham is the
second oldest example of colonial ecclesiastical architecture in
Charles County and the oldest and best known of the five surviving
18th century Episcopal churches.

Located in the once remote western section of the county,
Durham Parish dates from the 1692 Act of the General Assembly
establishing four Protestant parishes in the county. The origi-
nal log chapel was replaced in 1732 by a one-story, Flemish bond
brick structure that makes up the first floor level of the ex-
isting building. Displaying attractively executed brickwork en-
hanced by glazed headers, the 1732 structure has a chamfered
watertable, a door in the east and west ends and a third door,
the main entrance, centered on the south side. The building was
five bays in width on both side elevations. In 1791-93 the
original structure was raised to two-storys. At this time,
galleries were installed across the two ends and south side of
the interior. Beginning in 1843 extensive repairs and alterations
were made, including the bricking in of the east and south doors,
removal of the east and south galleries and the rebuilding of the
west gallery, the move of the altar to the east end, and the con-
struction of a brick vestry wing off the east end. The roof was
also rebuilt and new interior woodwork and altar furniture in-
stalled. A brick memorial wall fronting the church yard was built
in 1932 and a bell tower added to the east end of the vestry in
1942.

Still in use by the church is communion silver dated 1707.
The large, tree shaded cemetery contains several 17th and early
18th century stones, some of which were moved here from abandoned
private cemeteries in the area. Among 0ld Durham's early parish-
oners was General William Smallwood of Revolutionary War fame and
George Washington is known to have attended services here in the
company of his friend, General Smallwood.
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0ld Durham, the best known of Charles County's five eighteenth
century Protestant churches, occupies a secluded rural location
in the southwest section of the county.

A rectangular, two-story brick structure, 0ld Durham began as a
one-story building with Flemish bond brickwork above a chamfered,
English bond watertable. With scored mortar joints and a pro-
fusion of glazed headers, the latter providing a highly (though

at times incomplete) decorative effect, the masonry of this por-
tion of the church is one of the best preserved examples of
eighteenth century brick construction in the county. Although not
many details of the original structure are known, it is evident
that it had a door in its west end and a second door centered on
the south side elevation, the latter subsequently bricked in and

a window installed in its place. The windows and doors probably
once had segmental arches, but these were removed and rebuilt when
the church was enlarged. The roof design is unknown. It is
possible that it was hipped, a popular roof plan at the time 01ld
Durham was built.

In 1791-93 the roof of the earlier building was removed and the
walls raised to a full two-story height. It was at this time
that interior galleries were added to the south, east and west
sides. It is interesting to note that the second floor brick-
work, while Flemish bond on the south side (the original front),
is of contrasting English bond on the three remaining sides. The
gables, however, are of common bond and may have been rebuilt
during later renovations. It appears to have been at this time
that the arches of the earlier windows and doors were removed and
replaced by the existing splayed flat arches.

In the mid-nineteenth century, c. 1843, the later eighteenth
century roof was replaced by the present roof with eave overhangs
on all four sides and exposed rafter ends. The gables were also
apparently rebuilt, being of common bond brick above the eave
line. It is probable that the bricking in of the three second
floor windows in the east end occurred at this time, as well as
the addition of a vestry room at the east end. Of common bond
brick with brick dentiled cornices, the addition has one window
in each side elevation and a single door in its east end, the
latter now opening into a brick belltower added in 1942. Other
alterations included the installation of the existing front door
and, on the interior, new pews and altar furniture. The altar
was moved from the north wall to the east end and the east and
south galleries removed. The west gallery was substantially
rebuilt and has supporting columns, stairs and balustrades of
Victorian styling.

(continued on attached sheet)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

A plain but attractive brick structure, 01ld Durham is the second
oldest example of colonial ecclesiastical architecture in Charles
County and the oldest and best known of the five surviving 18th
century Episcopal churches.

Located in the once remote western section of the county, Durham
Parish dates from the 1692 Act of the General Assembly, establishing
four Protestant parishes in the county. The original log chapel was
replaced in 1732 by a one-story, Flemish bond brick structure that
makes up the first floor level of the existing building. Displaying
attractively executed brickwork enhanced by glazed headers, the 1732
structure has a chamfered watertable, a door in the east and west
ends and a third door, the main entrance, centered on the south side.
The building was five bays in width on both side elevations. 1In
1791-93 the original structure was raised to two-storys. At this
time, galleries were installed across the two ends and south side of
the interior. Beginning in 1843 extensive repairs and alterations
were made, including the bricking in of the east and south doors,
removal of the east and south galleries and the rebuilding of the
west gallery, the move of the altar to the east end, and the con-
struction of a brick vestry wing off the east end. The roof was
also rebuilt and new interior woodwork and altar furniture in-
stalled. A brick memorial wall fronting the church yard was built
in 1932 and a bell tower added to the east end of the vestry in
1942.

Still in use by the church is communion silver dated 1707. The
large, tree-shaded cemetery contains several 17th and early 18th
century stones, some of which were moved here from abandoned private
cemeteries in the area. Among Old Durham's early parishoners was
General William Smallwood of Revolutionary War fame and George
Washington is known to have attended services here in the company

of his friend, General Smallwood.
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Continuation of #7 (Description)--OLD DURHAM CHURCH
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01ld Durham has what is considered to be the most visually ap-
pealing situation of the five eighteenth century Protestant
churches in the county. The tree-shaded cemetery surrounding
the church contains many early graves, several of which date
from the late 17th century. A few of the earliest graves, as
well as those of several Revolutionary-era patriots, have been
moved here from abandoned family cemeteries located elsewhere
in the county. To the left of the walk leading to the west
entrance is an early sundial that for more than a century was
used to establish the time of services.

In 1932 the Colonial Dame of Maryland erected a commerative
wall fronting the church yard of eighteenth century brick sal-
vaged from a Port Tobacco building. In more recent years a
new parish hall and rectory were built nearby.



INSTRUCTIONS

S EE

S p—
Form 10-300 UNITED STATE  _PARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR F\E\-D < e
(Dec. 1968) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE N. R.
COUNTY:
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY — NOMINATION FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY
ENTRY NUMBER DATE

cH > 5%

(Type all entries — complete applicable sections)

OLP PURHAMW cHuEzeH

AND/OR HISTORIC:

[ﬁi:l

_OCATION

STREET AND NUMBER:

IroSI bES

CITY OR TOWN:

STATE ConE |CouNTY CODE
MARYLALSD CHARLES
|3. CLASSIFICATION ;
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
17
(Check One) EPRESSHE SEATER TO THE PUBLIC
Distriet [[] Building [ Public {7] |Public Acquisition: Occupied 95| Yes:
Site [ Structure 7] | Private = In Process 1 |Uneccupied =l Restricted [ ]
Object [ Both | Being Considered I |Preservation work Unrestricted &
in progress ]| yo: A
PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
Agricultural 1 Government ] Park O Transportation [0 Comments 1
Commercial O Industrial ]  Private Residence [} Other (Specify) []
Educational L Military [ Religious >
Entertainment [ ]  Museum [C]  Scientific O

[4. OWNER OF PROPERTY

OWNERS NAME:

EPisCoPaL ©Dioc- of MAaeyLAATD

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY oR TowN: B ALTIMORE STATE: AL A@)LAAST | cooE

MD DOA‘:J\'{lAmTIJ’M ©.C,

3Ly is

[5: LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC: O (OUECTLOWN

“EPISCEPAL B
CHARLES (oodTY COURTHOWSE

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: = AL TINMORE STATE CODE

La PlATA MARYLA TS

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROFPERTY:

FALNNOD

. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE OF SURVEY:

DATE OF SURVEY: Federol [ ] State [ ] County [] Local [7]

CEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE: CODE

ALVO |[HIEWNN AHLNT

ATTND 35N SdN 804




~ELD S_HE'E_I

/. DESCRIPTION  ~ RAS
(Check One)
CONDITION
Excellent H Good [] Fair [] Deteriorated [] Ruins [] Unexposed []
INTEGRITY (Check One) {Check One)
Altered [) Unaltered [ Moved [] Original Site [K

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

A CHARM\NEG (el AL cHURCH LILTH
“A Y plan rof | dpulte feoot deor. wrtlhk
e WIoPews ABCUE ; Floe Bays 10 LedeTH
o> lar. 4 200 levelL it Brick LoALLS
LAID I8 BOCD, + WATER ToWER .

U P DS oO THE 2T, leuoel avZE Fvunr
e ORIGWAC (32 STRUCTURE ALSD POSESS
g/ EASES, THE 20D, LEVEL (ma2) ARE

smAaLLer. ApD ARE /b

THE |STERIOR wWALL TREATMENT (=
PLastzc ., THE 1| Commoo (RODM ConTAVNSS
A Ceote® ASLE , WEop PEWS ALD REAR
200 leveLr GAUWERY .

A BELL Touwe®R® AT THE REAR, LOS-
SECTED To THE MAIR BLock \ay & hvick

PheEN , je A 2oth. CzuaToRy ABDITUOW,

Tetls s ALSD  TrerLoe of THE WAL ALRCSS
THE FeooT AREA Of THE (EMETER),

THE CHUBLH AP GlRoLAoTS ARE
W A oo STATE of REPAIE

238

SNOITAINALSSNI



INSTRUCTIONS

S EENE

.

g R
PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
Pre-Columbian [] 16th Century [ 18th Century [ 20th Century [ ]
15tk Century [ 17th Century [] 19th Century []

SPECIFIC DATE!S) (If Applicable and Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal Education (| Political O Urban Planning [
Prehistoric O Engineering 1| Religion/Phi- Other (Specity) Wl
Historic O Industry [ losophy g’

Agriculture (| Invention 1| Science (]

Art (| Landscope Seculpture ]

Commerce = Architecture [] Social/Human-

Communications [] Literature 7 | itarian (=)

Conservation = Military (| Theater 5 |

Music =3 Transportation []

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Events, Etc.)

OE &€ MDS, ofie. B PARISHES — 192

FEARILLER. 2HORCH Stoon 60 SAME \ZwTE.
CHoRLRY SUPPONTED BY 6&EAQ. WO,

Swawwee D (of ReEX WAR FAAME D+ AMD
ATTENDED ot RiM ASD OccASLonady
HS OSE JRIEND GeEn. WASH INGTOA .«




o GHEEV CH-63

9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL R ERENCES Q P -

10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA =

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES 0 LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE CCORDINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE FROPERTY DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROFPERTY

R OF LESS THAN ONE ACRE
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
Nw o 0 - o [ - (4] 0 - o v -
NE a . - -] ] -
5E a - - a . -
Sw o L] . -] L] -

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: CODE COUNTY CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE

1. FORM PREPARED BY _

NAME AND TITLE:

S @CwJertre

ORGANIZATION DATE

MDD . HIST, TRUST

STREET AND NUMBER:

Get 1704

CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE
ANNAPR, D,
72. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION I NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION _

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service, The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

I hereby certify that this property is included in the
National Register,

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

National [] State [] Local []
Date
prang ATTEST:
Title
i Keeper of The National Register
Date Date

338

SNOITLONYLSNI







] (PR, e e )
CHAS-63

T OLD DURHAN CHURCH (Christ Churcr
View From NW JRRivoire, 1978
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